


























 
 
 
 
 
 
  

FOR THE MARCH 11, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Mark Miller, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Staff 

DATE: February 27, 2014 
SUBJECT: Approval of Equalization Basin Pump Upgrade  

 

 N/A  X FUNDED   UNπFUNDED AMOUNT: $6,100 
FROM FUND:  Shortπlived 
Assets Reserve

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Authorize the City Manager to purchase a new wastewater pump for the 
wastewater treatment facility. 

 

SUMMARY: 
 
In order to move wastewater from the newly created Equalization (EQ) basin to the treatment facility at the 
same rate as the influent flows into the facility, a pump upgrade is required. 
 
Currently, due the insufficient pump flow capacity, some wastewater is diverted to the EQ basin while the 
remainder travels directly to the treatment facility.  This partially reduces the purpose and effectiveness of 
the EQ basin.  Essentially, it is possible that a slug of concentrated undesirable material could make it 
directly to the treatment facility and disrupt the biological treatment process, posing the risk of a violation 
of the City’s NPDES permit. 
 
With an upgraded pump, all of the influent will be diverted to the EQ basin where it will mix with a large 
volume of wastewater, diluting a potentially disruptive slug many times over. 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the City Manage to purchase a new wastewater pump in the 
amount of $6,100, before tax. 
 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

a. Pump Quote from FloπLine Technology, Inc 





















the required insurance to satisfy the conditions of this Agreement and deduct the cost thereof 
from compensation which would otherwise be due and payable to the Consultant for Services 
rendered under the terms of this Agreement. 

 
Section 7.  Subcontracts. 

 
Consultant may not subcontract any portion of the Services without the written authorization of 
City.  If City consents to a subcontract, Consultant shall be fully responsible to the City and third 
parties for all acts or omissions of the subcontractor to which the Services or any portion thereof are 
subcontracted.  Nothing in this Agreement shall create any contractual relationship between City 
and any subcontractor, nor shall it create any obligation on the part of the City to pay or cause the 
payment of any monies due to any such subcontractor except as otherwise is required by law. 
 
Section 8.  Assignment. 
 
Consultant shall not assign any right or obligation under this Agreement without the Cityôs prior 
written consent.  Any attempted assignment of any right or obligation under this Agreement without 
the Cityôs prior written consent shall be void. 
 

Section 9.  Entire Agreement. 

 
This Agreement represents the entire understanding of City and Consultant as to those matters 
contained herein.  No prior oral or written understanding shall be of any force or effect with respect 
to those matters covered herein.  This Agreement may not be modified or altered except in writing 
signed by both parties. 
 
Section 10.  Jurisdiction. 

 
This Agreement shall be administered and interpreted under the laws of the State of California.  
Jurisdiction over any litigation arising from this Agreement shall be in the Superior Court of the 
State of California with venue in Placer County, California.   
 
Section 11.  Suspension of Services. 

 
Upon written request by Consultant, City may suspend, in writing, all or any portion of the Services 
if unforeseen circumstances beyond the control of the City and Consultant make normal progress of 
the Services impossible, impractical or infeasible. Upon written City approval to suspend 
performance of the Services, the time for completion of the Services shall be extended by the 
number of days performance of the Services is suspended.   
 
Section 12.  Termination of Services. 

 
City may at any time, at its sole discretion, terminate all or any portion of the Services and this 
Agreement upon seven (7) days written notice to Consultant.  Upon receipt of notice of termination, 
Consultant shall stop performance of the Services at the stage directed by City.  Consultant shall be 
entitled to payment within thirty (30) days for Services performed up to the date of receipt of the 
written notice of termination. Consultant shall not be entitled to payment for any Services 









Section 22. Successors.  This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the 
respective parties hereto except to the extent of any contrary provision in this Agreement. 
 
Section 23. Attorneyôs Fees.  If any party to this Agreement commences legal proceedings to 
enforce any of its terms or to recover damages for its breach, the prevailing party shall be entitled to 
recover its reasonable attorneyôs fees, costs and the expenses of expert witnesses, including any 
such fees costs and expenses incurred on appeal. 
 
Section 24.  Compliance with Federal, State and Local Laws. 

 
A. Consultant shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, statutes, 

ordinances, rules and regulations affecting the Services, including without limitation laws 
requiring licensing and prohibiting discrimination in employment because of race, creed, 
color, sex, age, marital status, physical or mental disability, national origin or other 
prohibited bases.  City shall not be responsible or liable for Consultantôs failure to comply 
with applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, rules or regulations. 

 
B. Federal and/or State prevailing wage rates apply to portions of the work. 

 
C. During the performance of Services, consultant and any subconsultants shall not 

unlawfully discriminate, harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant 
for employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious creed, national origin, 
physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (e.g., 
cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Consultant and 
subconsultants shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and 
applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and harassment. Consultant 
and subconsultants shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and 
Housing Act (Gov. Code Ä12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated 
thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable 
regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government 
Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California 
Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this contract by reference and made a part 
hereof as if set forth in full. Consultant and its subconsultants shall give written notice of 
their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a 
collective bargaining or other agreement.  Consultant shall include the nondiscrimination 
and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform work under the 
contract. 

 
D. This contract is subject to 49 CFR, Part 26 entitled ñParticipation by Disadvantaged 

Business Enterprises in Department of Transportation Financial Assistance Programsò. 
The City has not established a DBE goal for this contract.  However, consultants who 
obtain  DBE participation for this contract are requested to report it using 
Exhibit 10-02. 

 
E. The Consultant shall have an adequate financial management and accounting system as 

required by 48 CFR Part 16.301-3, 49 CFR Part 18, and 48 CFR Part 31. The consultant 
must be able to certify that all costs included in the contract are allowable in accordance 

11 of 34









TASK 1 – CONSTRUCTION MANGEMENT 

Consultant will provide some, if not all, of the following construction management (CM) services.  
Additional project specific services not listed below may be required under the contract. 

¶ Project management 
o Coordinate, lead, attend project and construction meetings 
o Provide meeting agenda and minutes 
o Organize and files all construction related documentation 

¶ Prepare and oversee project procedure manuals 
¶ Review documents and permits 
¶ Develop construction management plans 
¶ Review design document 
¶ Attend pre-bid conferences 
¶ Coordinate and lead pre-construction conferences 
¶ Manage construction communication and administration 
¶ Management RFIs, shop drawings and other submittals 
¶ Review, negotiate and prepare proposed change orders and change orders 
¶ Manage disputes and dispute resolution 
¶ Manage construction schedules and recovery schedules 
¶ Review, prepare, and maintain As-Built drawings as necessary 
¶ Review, negotiate and prepare payment requests, progress and final payments 
¶ Provide quality assurance and review of inspection and contractor work 
¶ Provide labor code and certified payroll review 
¶ Provide and/or review project awareness and public outreach communications 
¶ Prepare correspondence and reports related to construction approval and acceptance 
¶ Coordinate and manage project close-out and any follow-on warranty inspections 

 
TASK 2 – INSPECTION 

Consultant will provide some, if not all, of the following inspection services.  If a project does not require 
CM services, then some service listed above may be required with the inspection services.  Additional 
inspection services not list below may be required under the contract. 

¶ Daily inspection logs/reports, including but not limited to 
o Summary of daily activity 
o Detail of daily activity 
o Division of contractor and subcontractor work 
o Logging of visitor and significant conversations 
o Review of storm water protection, environmental protection, safety, etc. 
o Lot of decisions/actions 
o Labor and equipment logs 
o Organization and labeling of daily photographs and videos 

¶ Attend pre-construction and regular construction progress meetings 
¶ Provide shop inspection services 
¶ Coordinate field and laboratory testing services with City geotechnical consultant 























































































City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 5-2015 
 

APPROVING THE CONSTRUCTION PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND PROJECT 
BUDGET SHEETS FOR THE GRASS VALLEY STREET UNDERGROUNDING 

PROJECT No. 14-01  

Whereas, On August 13, 2014, through Resolution 21-2014, the City Council 
established the Grass Valley Street Underground Utility District which will utilize Rule 20A 
utility undergrounding funds to relocate above ground electrical and telecommunications 
facilities on Grass Valley Street between the west side of the railroad tracks and the west 
alley behind Main Street; and, 
 

Whereas, the City Council has reviewed the Plans, Specifications and Engineers 
Estimate for the Utility Undergrounding Project; and, 

 
Whereas, the funding for the construction of the Utility Undergrounding Project is 

through the Rule 20A funds and the City Street Funds;  
 

Now Therefore, Be It Resolved by the City Council of the City of Colfax that the City 
Council has reviewed and approved the Plans, Specifications and Proposed Budget Sheets 
for the Rule 20A Underground Utility Project at Grass Valley Street and Main Street. 
 

Passed and Adopted this 11th day of March by the following vote: 
 
Ayes:    
Noes:   
Absent:  
Abstain:  

  
                                                                

___________________________________ 
      Kim A. Douglass, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 
 
 

3 of 160











Grass Valley Street Utility Undergrounding Project Project No. 14-01 
March 3, 2015  NOTICE TO CONTRACTORS 
 

 NC-2 

4. Bidders shall familiarize themselves with the site prior to preparing their bids. 

5. Attention is directed to Section 3-1.06, ñContractor License,ò of the Standard 
Specifications.  The Contractor shall posses a valid Class A license from the State of 
California at the time of the bid award, and the license(s) shall remain in effect 
throughout the term of this Contract. 

6. As required by SB 854, a) no contactor or subcontractor may be listed on a bid 
proposal for a public works project unless they are registered with the Department of 
Industrial Relations (DIR); b) no contractor or subcontractor may be awarded a public 
works contract unless registered with the DIR; and c) work performed on the project 
is subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the DIR.  Contractors and 
subcontractors may register with the DIR at the following website:  
https://efiling.dir.ca.gov/PWCR/ActionServlet?action=displayPWCRegistrationForm 

7. Plans and specifications may be examined at City Hall at 33 S. Main Street, Colfax, 
CA or 
Ponticello Enterprises Consulting Engineers office at 1216 Fortna Avenue in 
Woodland, CA 
 
Copies of the Contract Documents may be obtained through PlanWell Enterpriseã at 
www.planwell.com, more directly at 
https://order.e-arc.com/arcEOC/PWELL_PublicList.asp?mem=78,  
or by contacting ARC Document Solutions at (916) 443-1322. 

8. All questions concerning this project shall be provided in writing and must be 
received by the City, in the manner described below, on or before May 23, 2014.  
Written questions may be emailed to Jim Fletter at jim.fletter@ponticelloinc.com. 

9. The City will answer bidder questions through written addenda distributed by ARC 
Document Solutions.  ARC will distribute the addenda to bidders that register on the 
ARC bidderôs list for this project but it is Bidderôs responsibility to confirm receipt of 
addenda and list addenda on the bid forms. 

10. A Bid Bond of 10% of the total bid price will be required for this project. 

11. The successful bidder shall be required to furnish a Payment Bond, Performance 
Bond, and Warranty Bond and certificates of liability and property damage insurance. 
 The amounts of liability and property damage insurance will not be less than the 
amounts shown in the Special Provisions and will include an Additional Insured 
Endorsement to the Contractor's Liability insurance policy naming the City of Colfax, 
its officers, agents, and employees as additional insured. 

12. This contract is subject to State contract nondiscrimination and compliance 
requirements pursuant to Government Code, Section 12990. 

13. Pursuant to Section 1773 of the Labor Code, the general prevailing wage rates in the 
county, or counties, in which the work is to be done have been determined by the 
Director of the California Department of Industrial Relations.  These wages are set 
forth in the General Prevailing Wage Rates for this project, available at the City of 
Colfax City Hall, 33 South Main Street Colfax, CA  95713 and available from the 

https://efiling.dir.ca.gov/PWCR/ActionServlet?action=displayPWCRegistrationForm
http://www.planwell.com/
https://order.e-arc.com/arcEOC/PWELL_PublicList.asp?mem=78
mailto:jim.fletter@ponticelloinc.com


http://www.dir.ca.gov/oprl/DPreWageDetermination.htm






























Grass Valley Street Utility Undergrounding Project Project No. 14-01 
March 3, 2015  PROPOSAL 

 P-10  

  
PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE SECTION 7106 

NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT 

TO BE EXECUTED BY BIDDER 
AND SUBMITTED WITH BID 

 
(This noncollusion affidavit shall be executed by the Bidder in accordance with Section 7106 of the 
Public Contract Code.) 
State of California ) 
   ) ss. 
City of Colfax  ) 
 
 
__________________________________________, being first duly sworn, deposes and say that he or 
she is ___________________________________________________________________________ of 
_____________________________________________, the party making the foregoing bid that the 
bid is not made in the interest of, or on behalf of, any undisclosed person, partnership, company, 
association, organization, or corporation; that the bid is genuine and not collusive or sham; that the 
Bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other Bidder to put in a false or sham bid, 
and has not directly or indirectly colluded, conspired, connived, or agreed with any Bidder or anyone 
else to put in a sham bid, or that anyone shall refrain from bidding; that the Bidder has not in any 
manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement, communication, or conference with anyone to fix 
the bid price of the Bidder or any other Bidder, or to fix any overhead, profit, or cost element of the bid 
price, or of that of any other Bidder, or to secure any advantage against the public body awarding the 
Contract of anyone interested in the proposed Contract; that all statements contained in the bid are true; 
and, further, that the Bidder has not, directly or indirectly, submitted his or her bid price or any 
breakdown thereof, or the contents thereof, or divulged information or data relative thereto, or paid, 
and will not pay, any fee to any corporation, partnership, company association, organization, bid 
depository, or to any member or agent thereof to effectuate a collusive or sham bid. 
I declare the above to be true under the penalty of perjury. 
 
Dated: ______________________ __________________________________________ 
       (Signature of Responsible Officer) 

      __________________________________________ 
       (Name of Firm) 

      __________________________________________ 
  (Business Address) 

       
      (Phone Number) 
Contractorôs License: 

a. Class:   
b. Number:   
c. Expiration Date:     
    

* * * * * * * * * * 

24 of 160





 CC-1  

PROJECT NO. 14-01 

 
 

CITY OF COLFAX, 

CALIFORNIA 

 

 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 

 
THIS CONTRACT is made on the date set forth below, by and between the CITY OF COLFAX, 

(hereinafter "CITY"), and ___________________________________________ 

______________________________________________, (hereinafter "CONTRACTOR"). The CITY 

and CONTRACTOR for the consideration hereinafter mentioned agree as follows: 

 
ARTICLE 1: SCOPE OF WORK 

 
1.1. CONTRACTOR agrees to furnish all work, labor, tools, materials, transportation, 

equipment, services and other means of construction necessary to perform and complete 
in a good and workmanlike manner, those certain improvements as called for, and in the 
manner designated in, and in strict conformity with Project No. 14-01 entitled: GRASS 
VALLEY STREET UTILITY UNDERGROUNDING PROJECT, (hereinafter 
ñPROJECTò), in compliance with the Contract Documents as described in Article 3.  

 
1.2. CONTRACTOR understands and agrees that the work, labor, tools, materials, 

transportation, equipment, incidentals, services and other means of construction for the 
PROJECT shall be furnished and the work performed as required in the Contract 
Documents under the sole direction and control of CONTRACTOR, and subject to the 
inspection and approval of the CITY, or its representatives. 

 
ARTICLE 2: CONTRACT PRICE 

 

The CITY agrees to pay and the CONTRACTOR agrees to accept, in full payment for the work above 

agreed to be done, the sum of _________________________________________ dollars 

($____________________) subject to additions and deductions as provided in the Contract 

Documents. 

 
ARTICLE 3: CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

 

 3.1. The complete Contract consists of the following documents, to wit: 
Notice To Contractors 
Instruction to Bidders 
Executed Proposal, including the Bidderôs Bond and Addenda 
Construction Contract 



Grass Valley Street Utility Undergrounding Project Project No. 14-01 
March 3, 2015 CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 

  
 CC-2  

Project Plans for this Project 
Special Provisions for this Project 
Placer County Water Agency Standard Specifications 
Placer County General Specifications, dated August 2005 
California Department of Transportation Standard Plans, latest edition 
California Department of Transportation Standard Specifications, latest edition 
California Department of Transportation CAMUTCD, latest edition 
Equipment Rental Rates and General Prevailing Wage Rates of the State of California 
The Greenbook: Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction, latest edition 
Executed Labor and Materials Bond 
Executed Faithful Performance Bond 
Executed Warranty Bond  

 
3.2. Any and all obligations of the CITY and the CONTRACTOR are fully set forth and 

described in the above documents.  All of the above documents are intended to 
cooperate so that any work called for in one and not mentioned in the other or vice versa 
is to be executed the same as if mentioned in all said documents.  The documents 
comprising the complete Contract are sometimes collectively referred to as the Contract 
Documents. 

 
ARTICLE 4: TIME FOR PERFORMANCE - LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 
 

4.1. The Commencement date of the Contract for determination of the time for completion 
shall be the date CONTRACTOR is directed to proceed by the Director of Public 
Works, as stated in the Notice to Proceed and the Special Provisions.  The 
CONTRACTOR shall complete all work required by the Contract within thirty (30) 

calendar days after said commencement date, as adjusted and provided for in the 
Contract Documents. Working days shall be as defined in California Department of 
Transportation Standard Specifications Section 8-1.05 ñTimeò.  

 
4.2. In the event CONTRACTOR does not complete all work required by the Contract 

within the time specified above, liquidated damages shall be imposed upon the 
CONTRACTOR.  CONTRACTOR agrees that if all the work called for under this 
Contract in all parts and requirements is not completed within the performance time 
period set forth above, damage will be sustained by CITY.  As it is and will be 
impracticable to ascertain and determine the actual damage the CITY will sustain, 
CONTRACTOR agrees to pay to CITY fifteen hundred dollars ($1,500.00) per 
calendar day for each and every day(s) delay in finishing the work in excess of the 
working days described.  CONTRACTOR further agrees that CITY may deduct the 
amount of these damages from any moneys due or that may become due the 
CONTRACTOR under this Contract. To the extent appropriate, as determined by CITY 
in its sole discretion, CITY shall administer this Article in accordance with the 
California Department of Transportation Standard Specifications Section 8-1.10 
ñLiquidated Damagesò. 













































Grass Valley Street Utility Undergrounding Project Project No. 14-01 
March 3, 2015  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 GP-7  

SECTION 5 

 
CONTROL OF THE WORK 

 
5.01 PLANS 
 
 All authorized alterations affecting the requirements and information given on 

the approved plans shall be in writing.  No changes shall be made of any plan or 
drawing after the same has been approved by the City Engineer, except by 
direction of the City Engineer. 

 
 Working drawings or plans for any structure not included in the plans furnished 

by the City Engineer shall be approved by the City Engineer before any work 
involving these plans shall be performed, unless approval is waived in writing 
by the City Engineer. 

 
 It is mutually agreed, however, that approval by the City Engineer of the 

Contractor's working plans does not relieve the Contractor of any responsibility 
for accuracy of dimensions and details, and that the Contractor shall be 
responsible for agreement and conformity of his working plans with the 
approved plans and specifications. 

 
5.02 COORDINATION OF PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND SPECIAL 

PROVISIONS 
 
 These specifications, the plans, special provisions, and all supplementary 

documents are essential parts of the contract, and a requirement occurring in one 
is as binding as though occurring in all.  They are intended to be cooperative, to 
describe, and to provide for a complete work.  Plans shall govern over 
specifications; special provisions shall govern over both specifications and 
plans. 

 
5.03 INTERPRETATION OF PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 
 Should it appear that the work to be done, or any matter relative thereto, is not 

sufficiently detailed or explained in these specifications, the plans, or the special 
provisions, the Contractor shall apply to the City Engineer for such further 
explanations as may be necessary, and shall conform to such explanation or 
interpretation as part of the contract, so far as may be consistent with the intent 
of the original specifications.  In the event of doubt or question relative to the 
true meaning of the specifications, reference shall be made to the City Engineer, 
whose decision thereon shall be final. 

 
 In the event of any discrepancy between any drawing and the figures written 

thereon, the figures shall be taken as correct. 
 

ITEM 5B



Grass Valley Street Utility Undergrounding Project Project No. 14-01 
March 3, 2015  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 GP-8  

5.04 SUPERINTENDENCE 
 
 Whenever the Contractor is not present on any part of the work where it may be 

desired to give direction, orders will be given by the City Engineer in writing, 
and shall be received and obeyed by the superintendent or foreman in charge of 
the particular work in reference to which orders are given. 

 
5.05 INSPECTION 
 
 The City Engineer shall, at all times, have safe access to the work during 

construction and shall be furnished with every reasonable facility for 
ascertaining that the materials and workmanship are in accordance with the 
requirements and intentions of these specifications, the special provisions, and 
the plans.  All work performed and all materials utilized shall be subject to 
inspection. 

 
5.06 FAULTY LABOR AND MATERIALS 
 
 Neither the acceptance of the work by the City Engineer, nor final payment, nor 

any provisions in the contract documents shall relieve the Contractor of 
responsibility for faulty materials or workmanship, and the Contractor shall 
remedy any defects thereto and pay for any damage to other work resulting 
therefrom which shall appear within a period of one year from the date of notice 
of completion.  The remedying of any defects shall also include the bringing to 
grade the settlement of any trench fills and the repairing of any repaving.  The 
City shall give notice of observed defects with reasonable promptness. Provided, 
however, that nothing herein in intended to relieve the Contractor of 
responsibility for latent defects discovered after the one year warranty period.  

 
5.07 TRAFFIC CONTROL, FLAGMEN AND WARNING SIGNS 
 
 In order to expedite the passage of public traffic through or around the work and 

where ordered by the City Engineer, the Contractor shall install signs, lights, 
flares, barricades and other facilities for the sole convenience and direction of 
public traffic.  Also where directed by the City Engineer, the Contractor shall 
furnish competent flag-persons whose sole duties shall consist of directing the 
movement of public traffic through or around the work. 

 
 All signs, flag-persons and traffic control devices shall conform to the latest 

edition of the CA MUTCD compiled in accordance with Section 21400 of the 
Vehicle Code of the State of California and issued by the State of California 
Department of Transportation. 

 
 Work shall not commence at any given location until warning signs, appropriate 

traffic control devices and flag-persons, if required, are in proper position and 
approved by the City Engineer.  Should the City Engineer point out the 

ITEM 5B



Grass Valley Street Utility Undergrounding Project Project No. 14-01 
March 3, 2015  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 GP-9  

inadequacy of warning and protective measures, such action on the part of the 
City Engineer shall not relieve the Contractor from responsibility for public 
safety, or abrogate his obligation to erect and maintain these devices. 

 
  The Contractor's failure to comply with the above requirements will be 

sufficient cause for the City Engineer to immediately suspend work and if 
deemed necessary the City Engineer shall notify the Contractor in writing that 
the City of Colfax will install the proper signs and devices in accordance with 
said manual or as directed by the City Engineer and deduct from any payments 
due the Contractor the amount of fifty dollars ($50.00) or actual cost whichever 
is greater for each and every sign and warning device installed. 

 
 In addition to the above installation charge, a rental charge for each and every 

sign and warning device shall be deducted from any payments due the 
Contractor in the amount of fifty dollars ($50.00) per month or any portion of a 
month or actual cost whichever is greater. The installed signs and warning 
devices including necessary posts and mounting hardware shall remain the 
property of the City of Colfax.  Any signs or devices including posts which are 
damaged through the Contractor's negligence shall be replaced in kind by the 
Contractor or an amount equal to the actual replacement cost of the City shall be 
deducted from any payments due the Contractor. 

 
 The Contractor shall designate in writing the name, address and telephone 

number of the employees to contact after working hours for the proper 
maintenance of barriers and signs. 

 
 The Contractor shall not remove from the project his barricades or other traffic 

control devices placed within the project limits, or on the approaches to the 
project, for the direction and protection of the traveling public until he has given 
three (3) working days advance written notice to the City Engineer.  Such notice 
shall also constitute permission for the City to enter the project to place 
permanent directional and control signs, striping and marking on public roads.  
Neither the notice nor the placing of the signs, striping and marking, shall in any 
way relieve the Contractor of his responsibility under the terms of the contract.  
Should the Contractor desire the City to do signing and striping of public roads 
in advance of the timing set forth herein, a separate letter agreement can be 
made between the City Engineer and the Contractor. 

 
 The cost of furnishing, installing and maintaining such signs, lights, devices and 

other facilities not to be paid for as separate contract items, shall be considered 
as paid for in other items of work. 

 
 
 
 

ITEM 5B





















Grass Valley Street Utility Undergrounding Project Project No. 14-01 
March 3, 2015  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 GP-19  

7-2.11 SUBCONTRACTORS 
 
 Contractor shall require all subcontractors to procure and maintain insurance 

policies subject to the requirements set forth in Section 4.09, General and 
Automobile Liability Insurance. 

 
7-2.12 EMPLOYMENT OF APPRENTICES 
 
 Attention is directed to the provisions in Sections 1777.5 (Chapter 1411, Statues 

of 1968) and 1777.6 of the Labor Code concerning the employment of 
apprentices by the Contractor or any subcontractors under him. 

 
 Section 1777.5, as amended, requires the Contractor or subcontractor employing 

tradesmen in any apprenticeable occupation to apply to the joint apprenticeship 
committee nearest the site of the public Services project, which administers the 
apprenticeship program in that trade for a certificate of approval.  The certificate 
will also fix the ratio of apprentices to journeymen that will be used in the 
performance of the contract.  The ratio of apprentices to journeymen in such 
cases shall not be less than one (1) to five (5) except: 

 
 A. When unemployment in the area of coverage by the joint apprenticeship 

committee has exceeded an average of fifteen (15) percent in the ninety 
(90) days prior to the request for certificate, or 

 
 B. When the number of apprentices in training in the area exceeds a ratio of 

one (1) to five (5), or 
 
 C. When the trade can show that it is replacing at least 1/30 of its 

membership through apprenticeship training on an annual basis statewide 
or locally, or 

 
 D. When the Contractor provides evidence that he employs registered 

apprentices on all of his contracts on an annual average of not less than 
one (1) apprentice to eight (8) journeymen. 

 
 The Contractor is required to make contributions to funds established for the 

administration of apprenticeship programs in which he employs registered 
apprentices or journeymen in any apprenticeable trade on such contracts and if 
other contractors on the public services site are making such contributions. 

 
 The Contractor and any subcontractor under him shall comply with the 

requirements of Sections 1777.5 and 177.6 in the employment of apprentices. 
 
 Information relative to apprenticeship standards, wage schedules, and other 

requirements may be obtained from the Director of Industrial Relations, ex 

ITEM 5B







































 01025  
MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 

- 5 - 

4. The work further includes inspection coordination and testing with PG&E, Verizon, Wave and the 
City as necessary for approval of the work prior to or following trench backfill and compaction. 

5. Payment shall be per Each (EA) for all that which is necessary for these items. 

N. BID ITEM 32: Restore Concrete Patio, Sidewalk, Curb, Gutter 

1. This bid item includes payment for all work, equipment and materials necessary to replace the 
subbase with aggregate and restore the concrete surface.within the trench area, all in accordance with 
the plans, these specifications, and the State Specifications. 

2. The work further include forms and forming, dowelling and dowels, grading, hauling, pouring, 
curing, and protection of the work. 

3. Payment shall be per Cubic Yard (CY) of concrete placed. 

O. ADDITIVE BID ITEM 1A: Restore Roadway Concrete Base 

1. This bid item includes payment for all work, equipment and materials necessary to replace the 
roadway subbase and concrete base within the trench area within the roadway, excavated or damaged 
by the project work, all in accordance with the plans, these specifications, and the State 
Specifications. 

2. The work further includes grading, hauling, pouring, curing, and protection of the work. 

3. Concrete shall be Rapid Strength Concrete per Section 90-3 of the State Specifications.  The 
minimum ultimate concrete strength shall be 4,000 psi. 

4. Payment shall be per Cubic Yard (CY) of concrete placed. 

P. ADDITIVE BID ITEM 2A. Restore Roadway Asphalt Concrete 

1. This bid item includes payment for all work, equipment and materials necessary for placement of 
asphalt concrete to restore the road surfaces, all in accordance with the plans and these specifications. 

2. The work further includes surface cleaning and preparation, tack coat, hauling, placement, spreading, 
rolling, and protection of the work. 

3. Payment shall be per TON of asphalt placed. 

Q. ADDITIVE BID ITEM 3A. Remove Existing Light Pole and New Light Pole Foundation 

1. This bid item includes payment for all work, equipment and materials necessary for removing the 
existing light pole and constructing a new light pole foundation in accordance with the plans, these 
specifications, the existing ornamental street light adjacent to the site, and Greenbook. 

2. The work further includes coordinating with PG&E to de-energize the existing light, excavation, 
loading, hauling, concrete, reinforcement, curing and protection of the work. 

3. Foundation dimensions and shall be constructed per detail 429-1 of Greenbook and the plan details. 

4. Contractor shall be responsible for confirming bolt circle spacing of existing ornamental streets at 
three other corners of Main/Grass Valley intersection. 

5. Payment shall be Lump Sum (LS) for all that which is necessary for this item. 

3.02 ADJUSTMENT OF QUANTITY AND PAYMENT AMOUNT  

A. The quantities shown in the bid schedule are for bid purposes only. Additive or deductive quantities of the 
work will be adjusted by the Ownerôs Representative. For lump sum items, payment for quantity 
adjustments will be based on unit price breakdowns provided with the Schedule of Values. Final amount 
of payment will be adjusted based on actual quantity of work installed multiplied by the bid price for each 
bid item, or based on the unit price breakdowns provided with the Schedule of Values.  

END OF SECTION 
 





 01030  
SPECIAL PROJECT CONSTRAINTS 

- 2 - 

2. The City will conduct a parade on July 3 and downtown celebration on July 3rd.  The contractor is 
required to secure all trenches, provide safe pedestrian pathways across the railroad tracks, and 
remove all construction equipment and materials within the public right-of-way by end of day, July 
1st. 

3. The streets shall be swept clean and be free of debris by end of day July 2nd. 

1.04 CONSTRUCTION PERIOD 

A. The City will be constructing pedestrian and roadway improvements on Grass Valley Street starting June 
8, 2015.  The Contractor is required to complete all work prior to June 8th with the following exceptions. 

1. The Contractor coordinates the work under this contract with other contractors and all contractors 
agree to work concurrently.  Such agreement shall be in writing and approved by the City.  The 
Contractor shall assume all costs of working concurrently. 

2. The Contractor is awarded a contract for other work within or near the construction site.  In this case 
the Contractor will be allowed to perform other contract work concurrently with this project. 

B. In all cases above, the Contractor shall complete work on this project to allow other contractors or 
contract work to complete other work by August 7, 2015. 

1.05 TRAFFIC CONTROL 

A. The Contractor shall maintain steady traffic across the railroad track at all time.  Traffic control shall not 
cause vehicles to stop on tracks.  

B. During full closure of the street and intersection, traffic may be routed onto State Route 174 to North 
Main Street to Depot Street and to Grass Valley Street; and the reverse for the opposing traffic. 

C. The Contractor shall obtain all necessary permits for traffic control measures on Caltrans controlled State 
Highways, Routes, bridges and on/off ramps.  The facility may include, but may not be limited to, 

1. State Route 174 

2. Intersections 

(a) South Auburn & SR 174 

(b) I-80 Overpass & South Auburn 

(c) I-80 Overpass & South Canyon 

(d) I-80 on/off ramps & South Auburn 

D. Signing shall be provided to direct the public to downtown and parking within the business district during 
traffic rerouting. 

E. The roadways of Rising Sun Street, Grass Valley Street, South Auburn Street from Grass Valley to 
Whitcomb Avenue, and State Route 174 are impacted by heavy vehicle traffic immediately prior to and 
immediately following active school hours.  The Contractor will not be allowed to restrict traffic to one 
lane between the hours of 7AM and 9AM and 2PM and 4PM without a written request and approval by 
the City.  The Contractor may propose traffic detours to allow closures during the restricted hours.  
Approval of detours is at the discretion of the City. 

PART 2 - PRODUCTS  

2.01 STORAGE OF MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT  

A. No public or private property adjacent to the site shall be used for storage or disposal of the Contractor's 
equipment and materials, and excess excavated material, unless prior written approval is obtained from 
the legal owner.  

PART 3 - EXECUTION  

3.01 CONVENIENCE AND ACCESS  





 01040  
COORDINATION 

- 1 - 

 

 01040 

 

COORDINATION 

 
PART 1 - GENERAL  

1.01 SUBMITTALS  

A. Photographs and other records of examination, as required herein.  

1.02 OTHER WORK  

A. Coordination of Owner's Work by Others: Reference Article 7.02 of the General Conditions and Section 
01010 for coordination of Owner's work by others, if any, and coordinate Contractor's Work with Owner 
or Owner's designated coordinator.  

1.03 PROJECT MEETINGS  

A. General:  

1. Owner: Schedule physical arrangements for meetings throughout progress of Work, prepare meeting 
agenda with Contractor input and distribute with written notice of each meeting, preside at meetings, 
record minutes to include significant proceedings and decisions, and reproduce and distribute copies 
of minutes within 7 days after each meeting to participants and parties affected by meeting decisions.  

2. Representatives of Owner, Contractor, and Subcontractors shall attend meetings, as needed, or as 
requested by Owner.  

B. Preconstruction Conference:  

1. As set forth in Section 01010, Summary of Work, a preconstruction conference will be held at City 
Hall.  

2. Attendees may include but not be limited to:  

(a) Owner's representatives.  

(b) Contractor's office representative.  

(c) Contractor's resident superintendent.  

(d) Contractor's quality control representative.  

(e) Contractorôs safety program representative.  

(f) Subcontractors' representatives whom Contractor may desire or Owner may request to attend.  

(g) Utility agenciesô representatives (as required)  

(h) Others as appropriate.  

C. Progress Meetings:  

1. Owner will schedule regular progress meetings at City Hall or at a location of the Ownerôs choice, 
conducted weekly or as needed to review Work progress, progress schedule, Submittals submissions 
schedule, Application for Payment, contract modifications, and other matters needing discussion and 
resolution.  

2. Attendees will include:  

(a) Owner's representative(s).  

(b) Contractor, and appropriate Subcontractors and Suppliers.  

(c) Others as appropriate.  





















































 01720  
RECORD DOCUMENTS 

- 2 - 

B. Preservation  

1. Maintain documents in a clean, dry, legible condition and in good order. Do not use record 
documents for construction purposes.  

2. Make documents and Samples available at all times for observation by Owner.  

C. Making Entries on Drawings  

1. Using an erasable colored pencil (not ink or indelible pencil), clearly describe change by graphic line 
and note as required.  

(a) Color Coding:  

(i) Green when showing information deleted from Drawings.  

(ii) Red when showing information added to Drawings. 3) Blue and circled in blue to show 
notes.  

2. Date entries  

3. Call attention to entry by "cloud" drawn around area or areas affected.  

4. Legibly mark to record actual changes made during construction, including, but not limited to:  

(a) Location, rim elevation, and invert elevation of manholes, rodding inlets, cleanouts, or sewer 
laterals if not shown or where it differs from that shown.  

(b) Final inside diameters and lengths of sewer lined with cured-in-place-pipe.  

(c) Changes made by Addenda and Field Orders, Work Change Directive, Change Order, Written 
Amendment, and Owner's written interpretation and clarification using consistent symbols for 
each and showing appropriate document tracking number.  

D. Make entries in other pertinent documents as accepted by Owner.  

E. If documents are not accepted by Owner, secure a new copy of that document from Owner at Owner's 
usual charge for reproduction and handling, and carefully transfer change data to new copy to acceptance 
of Owner.  

END OF SECTION 
 
 

ITEM 5B

































 02200  
EARTHWORK 

- 5 - 

Attention is called to the various Safety Orders of the California State Industrial Accident Commission 
which are adopted by reference as part of these Specifications.  

The excavation shall be made to enable the pipe and/or conduit to be laid to the grade and alignment 
designed on the Plans.  

Unprotected, open excavations during nonworking hours shall not be permitted.  

It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to conform to all the requirements of all permits obtained 
from all agencies and to make the construction site safe against injury to people and/or livestock by 
erection of adequate posted barricades and/or temporary fences and covering the excavations with plating.  

Free access shall be maintained to all fire hydrants, water gates, meters, and private drives, and means 
shall be provided so that water can flow in the gutters without interruption.  

Arrangements for access to the construction site over private property shall be mutually agreed upon by 
the Contractor and the City before start of construction.  

Any pavement, curb, or sidewalk constructed or reconstructed which is subsequently damaged due to 
activity under this Contract shall be removed and replaced by the Contractor at no additional cost to the 
City. For a period of one (1) year following the date of final acceptance of the work, the Contractor shall 
promptly patch, maintain, repair, and/or replace any pavement, curb, or sidewalk which settles or 
becomes damaged due to settlement or defective materials or workmanship. If settlement has occurred, 
the pavement, curb, or sidewalk shall be removed and the subbase and/or base course restored to proper 
grade before restoration of the surface course.  

All damages or claims resulting from damaged or improperly restored or maintained pavements, curbs, 
and sidewalks shall be borne entirely by the Contractor.  

B. EXISTING UTILITIES  

Existing utilities shall be protected at all times. Contractor shall be responsible for locating, verifying, and 
potholing all existing utilities.  

C. OPEN TRENCHING  

Unless otherwise indicated, the walls of the pipeline or conduit trench shall be vertical and supported by 
shoring or bracing and no side sloping of the trench walls will be allowed. Twelve-inch minimum and 18-
inch maximum clearance shall be maintained between the outer wall of the pipe barrel and the shoring or 
bracing, unless otherwise provided on the plans or approved by the Engineer.  

The trench shall be excavated to a level section and to such elevation as will give a uniform bearing and 
true flow line elevation when the pipe is laid. All loose dirt in the bottom of the trench must be removed.  

The amount of open trench permitted at any time during working hours shall not exceed 100 feet. Open 
trench during nonworking hours shall not be permitted.  Open trench that is not backfilled shall be 
covered with steel plates that conform to Caltrans skid-resistance guidelines and have a coefficient of 
friction of 0.35 or greater made from machined surface.  

All sheets/shoring extending no deeper than the bottom of the excavation shall be extracted by static pull 
only without the use of vibratory equipment.  

D. TRENCH PLATES  

Steel plates shall be used for temporary cover of trenches and other excavations. All trench plates shall 
have a skid resistant surface treatment. When backfilling trenches and excavations, whether transverse or 
longitudinal, and the work cannot be properly completed within the same working day, trench plates with 
non-skid surface treatment will be required to maintain all vehicular, bicycle and pedestrian traffic flow. 
The following conditions shall apply:  

1. All steel trench plates shall extend beyond the edge of the trench wall a minimum of twelve (12ò) 
inches.  

2. All steel trench plates shall be fully supported around the perimeter to prevent tipping.  







 02200  
EARTHWORK 

- 8 - 

intermediate backfill material shall be compacted to a minimum of 90 percent relative compaction. 
Relative compaction in paved areas to be determined by Caltrans California Test 216 in Caltrans 
right-of-way and ASTM D1557 elsewhere. The moisture content of the trench zone backfill material 
being placed shall be at or above optimum moisture content to achieve required compaction.  

Trench intermediate backfill shall be placed in horizontal layers no thicker than 8 inches 
uncompacted. Each layer shall be moistened, if necessary, tamped, rolled or otherwise compacted to 
the density shown on the Drawings.  

Compaction testing of trench materials within paved areas shall be done in accordance with the 
requirements of the Caltrans Standard Specifications and referenced standard tests. The compaction 
tests shall be California Test 216, using wet-wet sample densities for lime-treated materials and dry-
dry sample densities for nonlime-treated materials. Compaction testing of trench materials within 
unpaved areas shall be done in compliance with ASTM D1557 (Modified Proctor Test). Maximum or 
relative densities refer to dry soil densities obtainable at optimum moisture content.  

3.04 SUBGRADE FOR PAVEMENT  

The prepared subgrade shall be scarified to a depth of at least 30 inches and recompacted in maximum 8-inch 
lifts to at least 95 percent of the maximum density.  

3.05 EXPLOSIVES AND BLASTING  

Blasting or the use of explosives shall not be permitted.  

3.06 CONTAMINATED MATERIALS  

No contaminated materials are known in the project area. If contaminated materials are encountered, a change 
of condition will be addressed in accordance with these Specifications.  

Activities involving contaminated materials, should they be encountered, shall be in accordance with:  

A. California Hazardous Water Control Law (HWCL), Health and Safety Code, Sections 25100 through 
25249.  

B. California Code of Regulations, Title 22, Division 4, Chapter 30, Minimum Standards for Management of 
Hazardous and Extremely Hazardous Wastes.  

C. Federal Resources Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), 42 USC, Sections 6901 through 6987.  

D. Federal Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA), PL 98-6 16.  

E. California State Water Resources Control Board Regulations, California Code of Regulations, Sections 
2501 through 2610.  

F. California Code of Regulations, Title 8, General Industry Safety Orders, Section 5194, Hazard 
Communication.  

G. California Labor Code, Chapter 2.5, Hazardous Substances Information and Training.  

H. California Occupational Safety and Health Administration (CAL/OSHA) regulations (Title B, CCR, 
Section 5192).  

I. Other codes and regulations related to the scope of work.  

The Contractor shall prepare and submit a site-specific Health and Safety Plan (HSP), subject to review 
by the Engineer, which details how the Contractor intends to protect workers while working in the 
presence of contaminated soils and groundwater.  

If contaminated materials are encountered during construction, the Contractor shall stop work 
immediately in this area, and shall sufficiently secure the work area such that contaminated materials or 
potentially contaminated materials are not exposed to public. This shall be accomplished through 
temporary backfilling, trench plating, covering exposed areas with plastic sheeting, or other means. The 
Contractor shall immediately notify the Construction Manager of his findings, shall secure the area, and 
then shall continue work in another area away from the area in question. The Contractor shall not continue 





 02500  
PAVING 

- 1 - 

 02500 

 

PAVING 

 
PART 1 - GENERAL  

1.01 DESCRIPTION OF WORK  

A. This Section includes furnishing all labor, material, equipment, tools and services required for repairing 
and resurfacing of existing roadways and paved areas damaged or removed during construction.  

B. All paving materials and methods shall conform to the specifications of the agency having jurisdiction.  

1.02 SUBMITTALS  

A. The Contractor shall provide the following submittals as specified in Section 01300:  

1. Mix design for asphalt concrete.  

2. Certificate of compliance for asphalt concrete, aggregate base, prime coat and paint binder.  

PART 2 - PRODUCTS  

2.01 MATERIALS  

A. AGGREGATE BASE:  

Aggregate base shall be Class II, 3/4-inch maximum grading conforming to Section 26-1.02B of the 
Caltrans Standard Specifications.  

B. LIQUID ASPHALT:  

Liquid asphalt for tack coats and prime coat treatment of aggregate base shall be  

Grade SC-70 and shall comply with Section 93 of the Caltrans Standard Specifications.  

C. ASPHALT CONCRETE:  

Aggregate for initial courses where required shall meet the full requirements of Section 39-2.02 of the 
Caltrans Standard Specifications for Type "B" 3/4-inch maximum medium grading; aggregate for final lift 
shall meet the full requirements of Section 39-1.02E of the Caltrans Standard Specifications for Type "B" 
1/2-inch maximum medium grading.  

The grade of asphalt binder to be used shall be PG-64-16 viscosity graded asphalt confirming to the 
requirements of Section 92, "Asphalts," of the Caltrans Standard Specifications. The amount of asphalt 
binder to be mixed with aggregate shall be such that the air void content of the resulting asphalt concrete 
shall be not less than 3 percent nor more than 5 percent. Stabilometer value as determined by California 
Test Method No. 304 shall be 38 minimum.  

D. ASPHALTIC EMULSION:  

Asphaltic emulsion to be used as a tack coat on existing asphalt concrete surfaces shall be SS1 in 
conformance with Section 94 of the Caltrans Standard Specifications.  

2.02 STRIPES AND PAVEMENT MARKINGS  

A. All traffic striping and pavement markings shall be thermoplastic.  

B. Thermoplastic stripes and pavement markings shall conform to the provisions in Section 84-2 of the State 
Standard Specifications.  

2.03 PAVEMENT MARKERS  

A. Pavement markers shall conform to Section 85 of the State Standard Specifications.   











































 


















	00A 03-11-2015Agenda
	02A Minutes
	02B Contracts List
	02C EQ Basin Pump
	140311 Staff Report WWTP Pump
	140311 Flo-Line Technology Quote

	02D On Call Construction Management Contract
	Staff Rpt CM&Inspection CSA 3-11-15
	Resolution 4-2015 Construction Management 4Leaf and Vali Cooper
	4LEAF INC. CSA 2-9-2015 City of Colfax
	Vali Cooper CSA 3-6-2015

	05A Budget Review
	150311 Budget Review Staff Report
	150311 Budget Review Data

	05B Undgrounding Project Complete
	Staff Rpt ConstAuth 3-11-15
	Resolution 5-2015 Plans, Specs and PBS 20A Utilities Undergrounding
	UG Spec 2-13-15
	Rule20A BidSet
	Project Budget Sheet Revision 1-21-14




